JSC Administrative Support Services (JASS) - NNJ08225419R
 Questions and Answers Received
After Release of Draft Request For Proposal (RFP)
1. Question:  Number of current employees and how are they distributed across the current contract?
Answer:  There are approximately 125 contractor administrative support positions (58% at Secretary II, 40% at Secretary III, and 2% at Secretary IV).
2. Question:  What kind of IT internal support (software, system, etc.) is provided by JASS and what will be expected of contractor?

Answer:  All necessary IT support is provided by NASA for Government-furnished services or equipment.  The contractor may be asked to upload documents to existing NASA websites or enter information in existing NASA databases.
3. Question:  How would supply ordering be handled--going through JASS and filling out identified forms, or is contractor expected to handle?

Answer:  The contractor will use the current system and forms established by JSC per the guidance of the JSC organizational representative.
4. Question:  The printing requirement is vague (large volumes).  Joint commission guidelines (GPO) must be considered if contractor is expected to reproduce large volumes of materials.  Please clarify.
Answer:  JSC’s in-plant equipment and operations are to be utilized when large volumes of printed products are required.  Printing requests received by the JSC Print Shop that cannot be handled by JSC’s in-plant operations will be forwarded by the JSC Printing Officer to the Government Printing Office Regional Printing Procurement Offices (found in JSC 27838C “The JSC/Government Printing Office (GPO) Contract Printing Plan).  Per the Draft RFP, Section 4, 4.1 SOW, 3.0.7, “when large volumes of copies are needed, or special graphic services are required, the Contractor shall prepare printing or graphic work requests, obtain appropriate approvals as needed and forward to printing or graphics for service completion.”  Each JSC organization may have its own procedures for printing requests, internal organization approval, and submittal of the requests to the JSC Print Shop.  This information will be provided by the appropriate JSC organizational representatives when the contract begins. 
5. Question:  Are records management electronic or paper and if paper then are there specified storage locations?

Answer:  Records management is planning, controlling, directing, organizing, training, promoting, and other managerial activities related to creating, maintaining, using, and disposing of records to achieve adequate and proper documentation of Federal policies and transaction and effective and economical management of Agency operations.  It may involve electronic media as well as paper.  Storage locations shall be specified and provided by JSC organizations requesting these services.
6. Question:  Once the question is submitted the subsequent page thanks you for submitting a question to FDOC.  Is the link correct?
Answer:  This error was corrected shortly after the Draft RFP was posted.  The JASS Contract Specialist did receive your question.
7. Question:  The original schedule had a proposal due date of August 21.  The synopsis modification changed the due date to September 19.  Now in the DRFP the schedule has been pushed back up to August 21.  Is the schedule now firm?
Answer:  The schedule posted in the Draft RFP contains the current anticipated due date.  Offerors should monitor the NASA Acquisition Internet Service (NAIS) and JASS websites for information on any changes to the posted schedule.
8. Question:  The Draft RFP requires resumes for the key positions.  If the proposer were to propose retaining the current key personnel, these resumes will most likely be unavailable due to competitive reasons.  Are the resumes for these positions still required or should alternative resumes be provided?
Answer:  The Offeror must describe the level of commitment for each key personnel proposed.  The Offeror shall provide rationale for how the work can be effectively performed with the key person or persons who are not fully committed to this contract, including proposal of alternate key personnel per the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.15A(1)(c).
9.
Question:  As a SDB, can the proposer invoice semi-monthly?

Answer:  No, the Offeror must invoice monthly as required per the Draft RFP, Section 4, Attachment 4.4, DRD 7.
10.
Question: Are any of the incumbent employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement?


Answer:  No, the incumbent employees are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement.
11.
Question:  Will this be a single award?


Answer:  Yes, this is a single award contract.
12. Question:  Will the government bear the expense of the fingerprinting, CNIC, and NAC Checks?
Answer:  If JSC requires fingerprinting, CNIC, and NAC for JASS contractor badging or security clearance, the Government will bear the expense.
13. Question:  What is a SATERN website?

Answer:  The SATERN (System for Administration, Training, and Educational Resources for NASA) website is NASA’s on-line resource for web-based training and registration of classroom training offered by NASA.

14. Question:  Please define “excessed” from Section 7.0 property coordination.


Answer: In the Draft RFP, “excessed” means using the proper JSC procedures to return property to the JSC warehouse as requested by the organization.

15. Question:  There is an IT requirement to maintain and update office web pages and sites as required.  How extensive is this requirement and what type of software does NASA use?  Is this a “request to the appropriate party” service?


Answer:  If requested by a NASA organization, administrative support personnel may be required to monitor specified NASA website(s) for outdated information and upload current/new information provided by the organization.  The NASA office will be responsible for providing software user instructions for uploading to the website.  Technical IT maintenance of JSC websites is not part of this solicitation.

16. Question:  Will contractors be allowed to do site survey for purpose of putting together the safety training manual?


Answer:  A site survey is not necessary as the requirements in this solicitation do not include specific responsibilities related to JSC facilities. A photo is available in the Pre-Proposal Conference charts showing a typical workstation.  
17. Question:  What type of mentoring does JSC consider as being important for Administrative Assistants?


Answer:  The Offeror is responsible for conveying its understanding of the Statement of Work (SOW) in the proposal, including the Offeror’s approach and strategy for training/mentoring.
18. Question:  There is a delivery requirement on travel arrangements, does JSC prefer to have those hand delivered, or to use the commercial/Government carriers (Mail, FedEx, etc).  How are these documents currently being delivered to the other areas?


Answer:  JSC uses electronic systems for travel documentation; however, on rare occurrences, administrative support personnel may be required to hand-deliver travel packages in a timely manner to local JSC offices/travelers.
19. Question:  How is current management performing?  How/where would NASA like to see improvements?


Answer:  Information on the current contractors’ performance is not releasable, nor relevant to this solicitation.  All NASA requirements are included in the solicitation.
20. Question:  What is the current safety record for the contract personnel providing Administrative support?  Is JSC satisfied with this record?


Answer:  Information on the current contractors’ safety record is not releasable, nor relevant to this solicitation.
21.
Question:  Is pre-employment training chargeable to contract or to contractor?

Answer:  It is up to the Offeror to decide what to include in its proposed charges/prices in response to this solicitation and to explain the prices in the proposal.
22.
Question:  What is the frequency of temporary requirements?  What is the average duration of temporary assignments?


Answer:  JSC’s need for temporary administrative support varies.  The average use of temporary contract personnel has been approximately 2-3 equivalent persons per year.  Due to the minimal use of temporary support, we are not able to provide an average duration.  Per the Draft RFP, Section 4, Attachment 4.1 SOW, 2.1, “temporary support may range from 1 week to a year with possible 6-month extensions generally not to exceed 2 years of total service”.

23. Question:  What type of need does NASA foresee for future temporary administrative support and how many times does NASA foresee requesting this type of fill-in?


Answer:  It is difficult to forecast JSC’s need for future temporary administrative support as it varies. See answer to question #22.
24. Question:  How many temporary positions have been [word omitted by submitter] in the past year?  Two years?  Three years?  What type of programs / Which programs requested this temporary support?


Answer:  For the first part of this question, see the answer to question #22.  Temporary administrative support has been utilized in various organizations/programs across JSC as needed.

25. Question:  What has the personnel turn-over rate been for the past year?  The past 2 years?


Answer:  The Government does not collect this information from the current contractor.
26.
Question:  Does the training manager need to be located on site in Houston or any other NASA site?  Would NASA consider the training manager managing from a distance and traveling as needed as required?


Answer:  The location of the Training Specialist is up to the Offeror.  JSC requires that training needs be met in a timely manner in order to perform SOW requirements successfully.
27. Question:  Should a training manager be on-site at each site, or would NASA be favorable to having one training manager travel to the different sites?


Answer:  See answer to question #26.

28. Question: What should a contractor considering this acquisition take into consideration as a proposal strategy?


Answer:  It is up to the Offeror to determine its strategy based on the solicitation and clearly convey that strategy in its proposal.
29. Question: Can/should a contractor’s internal administrative experience be used as a past performance?  If this type of experience is used as a past performance, would NASA JSC consider this of an equal value as a Past Performance through a contracting endeavor?


Answer:  The Offeror may provide internal administrative experience in its narrative summary if the Offeror believes this information to “qualify the company or major subcontractor to perform this work” [per the Draft RFP, Section 5, item 5.16A].  “The currency and relevance of the information, source of the information, context of the data, and general trends in contractor’s performance shall be considered” [per the Draft RFP, Section 6, item 6.4 and FAR 15.305(a)(2)].  “However, in the case of an Offeror without a record of relevant past performance or for whom information on past performance is not available, the Offeror may not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance” [per the Draft RFP, Section 6, item 6.4 and FAR 15.305(a)(2)(ii) and (iv)].

30.
Question: What is the current number of personnel in each labor category at each service location - JSC, Ellington Field, and White Sands?


Answer:  See answer to question #1.  There are currently approximately 5-6 contractor administrative support positions at Ellington Field and approximately 4 contractor administrative support positions at White Sands.

31. Question:  What percentage of projected employees must have a security clearance above a NAC and NCIC/III or BICE verification?


Answer:  The percentage of employees requiring security background checks above NACI varies depending on the needs of JSC organizations. See also question #12.
32.
Question: Will the contract be a single or multiple award vehicle?


Answer:  See answer to question #11.

33.
Question:  How often are performance metrics evaluated?


Answer:  If referring to the contractor’s performance metrics, this information is proprietary and not evaluated by the Government.  However, the Government will review the performance metrics that the contractor offers to provide.  Metrics provided in response to a Data Requirements Description (DRD) are evaluated as they are received.  
34. Question:  No DRD for the Training Plan is provided or listed in the DRD List.  Will there be a DRD for the Training Plan in the Final RFP?


Answer:  No, rather the solicitation states that the Offeror’s personnel training plan shall become part of the contract upon award [Per the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.15B(5)].
35. Question:  What is the significance of the Contract Bargaining Agreement (CBA) while no current employees are covered under any CBA per Section 4.5 (SCA Intent & Response Notice)?


Answer:  The current incumbent contractor does not have employees who are represented by organized labor under a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA).  In the future, however, if employees were to become represented, the contractor is responsible for providing JSC with a copy of the CBA and associated information.
36. Question:  Section 6.5 - What is the importance of Price compared to Other Factors (e.g., Mission Suitability)?


Answer:  Please refer to the Draft RFP, Section 6, 6.1(c).
37. Question:  Could [JSC] list the names of the incumbent subcontractors supporting the current JASS contract?


Answer:  The current incumbent does not include subcontractors.
38. Question:  Attachment 4.1, Par. 2.0 - The referenced paragraph of the SOW identifies a Program Manager, Supervisor(s), and Training Coordinator.  However, the SOW does not appear to specifically identify these positions as key personnel.  Are these three positions designated key personnel? If so, are they the only key personnel identified in this RFP?
Answer:  Yes, these three positions are designated as key personnel per the Draft RFP, Section 2, 2.29. Yes, these are the only key personnel identified in this RFP. It is up to the Offeror to propose the number of personnel required to fill these positions.
39.
Question:  Attachment 4.1, Para 2.1 - The referenced paragraph indicates that the contractor will maintain working shifts, and that the contract will require performance outside of normal duty hours.
a)
Question:  Please specify the shifts for which staff will be required under this contract.


Answer:  In the Draft RFP, “shifts” and “normal duty hours” are intended to be interpreted broadly according to the needs of specific JSC organizations.  An organization may require office coverage longer than a typical 8-hour day and may request that the contractor arrange shifts for multiple employees to provide coverage.
b)   Question:  What shifts are considered the normal duty hours?

Answer:  In the Draft RFP, “Normal duty hours” refer to the daily schedule negotiated for each service request by the contractor with NASA based on the JSC customer’s requirements.  This daily schedule is not limited to 8 hours per day, but shall not exceed more than 40 hours per week.  
c) Question:  What shifts are considered outside of normal duty hours?
Answer:  According to the Draft RFP, anything outside the daily negotiated schedule or more than 40 hours per week may be considered outside normal duty hours.  

d) Question:  Does the Government intend that work outside of normal duty hours be accomplished on an overtime basis or as regularly scheduled work by additional full-time employees?
Answer:  The Offeror is to determine what constitutes overtime based on a 40-hour workweek and the daily negotiated schedule.  If a JSC organization anticipates work outside of normal duty hours, that organization will request overtime for the existing administrative support personnel assigned to the task.  Overtime services will be authorized on the task orders and only approved for use through Contracting Officer Technical Representative concurrence on an as needed basis per the Draft RFP, Section 1, Section 1.8. 
40.
Question:  Attachment 4.1, Para 2.1 - The referenced paragraph indicates that the contractor will be required to provide temporary and part-time administrative support as necessary.  However, the RFP does not indicate how and under what circumstances temporary and part-time work will be required.
a)
Question:  Does the government intend for the contractor to maintain a ready pool of temporary employees?

Answer:  The Government intends to order services in accordance with the Draft RFP, Section 2 of the SOW.  Please see the Draft RFP, SOW Section 2.2 “Task Order and JASS Service Request Authorization” for JSC requirements.  Offeror’s are to determine their strategy for ensuring the ability to fulfill temporary or part-time requests as they are received.  See also the answer to questions #22 and #23.
b) Question:  What is the estimated number of positions that the government intends the contractor to fill with a) temporary and b) part-time employees?

Answer:  JSC needs vary; therefore, we are unable to provide an accurate estimate. For temporary services, please see the answer to question #22. JSC has not included part-time contractor services in previous administrative support contracts. Other than the rare need for part-time temporary secretarial services, it is difficult to estimate how much JSC will utilize part-time services in the future.
41.
Question:  Form 3 Doc 001-017 [Attachment 4.4-9.3] - the referenced document is titled Fringe Benefits per Collective Bargaining Agreement, and requires the contractor to submit fringe and benefit information as required by a collective bargaining agreement.  However, the RFP does not indicate that any positions are covered by a collective bargaining agreement and, in response to an Industry Day question, the Government has advised that there are no positions covered by a collective bargaining agreement in the JASS procurement. 

a)
Question:  Are any positions involved in this procurement covered by a CBA?


Answer:  See answer to question #35.
b)
Question:  If so, what positions are covered?

Answer:  See answer to question #35.
c)
Question:  If so, please identify the CBA involved and include a copy in the technical library.


Answer:  See answer to question #35.
d)
Question:  If no positions are covered by a CBA, please advise how to respond to this request for CBA information.  


Answer:  See answer to question #35. 

42.
Question:  Atch 5, Para 1(c) [Section 5, Section 5.15(1)(c)] - the referenced document requires resumes for key personnel, but the RFP does not appear to specifically designate any particular positions as key personnel.  It appears from other references that the Program Manger, Supervisor(s), and Training Coordinator are key personnel (see 2.1. above).

a)
Question:  Is it correct that the Program Manager, Supervisor(s), and Training Coordinator are key personnel?


Answer:  See answer to question #38.
b)
Question:  If so, are they the only key personnel?

Answer:  See answer to question #38.
c) Question:  If not, please identify all key personnel for which resumes are required and which are subject to the designated key personnel requirements.

Answer:  See answer to question #38.
43. Question:  Attach 5, para 5.16 [Section 5, 5.16] - Past performance information.  The referenced paragraph appears to require the contractor to list all past performance over the preceding three years with specific information required for each current and completed contract.

a)
Question:  Is this information required for all past and current contracts or is it only required for past performance for which questionnaires are being generated.
Answer:  Per the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.16A, “The Offeror shall provide a narrative summary of all past experience in the last three years in the field(s) of technical endeavors that relate to this acquisition and/or quality the company for major subcontractors to perform this work.”  Per the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.16F “The Offeror shall provide the past performance questionnaire to three to five of the references identified above [Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.16A-C] for its own company and at least two for each proposed major subcontractors and/or team members.”  
b) Question: Is this required for the prime contractor and all subcontractors or only for the prime?
Answer:  See answer to 43(a).
c)
Question:  Is the requirement for three to five past performance citations/questionnaires required for the prime and all subcontractors or only for the team (in other words 3-5 total for a two contractor team or 3-5 for the prime and an additional 3-5 for each subcontractor.  

Answer:  Regarding questionnaires, see answer to question 43(a) and reference the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.16F.  Regarding citations, per the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.16E, “a statement shall be made regarding any OSHA citations of the company’s operations during the past three years for which complete data is available.”  “If a joint venture or prime-subcontractor relationship is proposed, the same information shall be provided for each company that may provide either $1,000,000, or more in contract value or ten or more full-time equivalent employees.”
44.
Question:  Attachment 4.9 - Task Order Process - will quotes be required for each task order?

Answer:  Yes, a quote is required for each task order, and pricing will be based on the awardee’s negotiated final pricing based on the proposal.  
45.
Question:  Draft RFP Section 2.4 (g) Invoice - How often will invoices be submitted?  i.e., weekly, bi-weekly, monthly?


Answer:  See answer to question #9.

46. Question:  Why did NASA JSC not exercise the optional 1 year contract extension?

Answer:  NASA has exercised all option periods available.  
47.
Question:  The Draft RFP states that the contractor must test to ensure that the administrative personnel have the required level of proficiency in the software packages. Who/how are these proficiency levels determined?

Answer:  A reasonable interpretation of proficiency is to be applied.  Refer to the Draft RFP, Section 4, Attachment 4.7, Standard Labor Categories Job Description Guidelines. 
48.
Question:  Does JSC have a written policy that is any different or any more descriptive than what the Standard Labor Categories states are applicable for the administrative positions?


Answer:  The Standard Labor Categories Job Description Guidelines (Draft RFP, Section 4, Attachment 4.7) are the minimum suggested qualifications.  
49. Question:  The Draft RFP states that the Government may add other duties via task orders. Will these other duties be issued under the same price modification as the original contract is bid for, or will a separate price modification be added in future for this type of requirement?  Can other duties be elaborated on?


Answer:  Any additional duties added to a particular service request will be in scope of the SOW and therefore requiring no additional pricing.  
50.
Question:  What is JSCs description of the duties and job requirements for a Fire Warden?


Answer:  In the case of a real emergency evacuation or drill, a designated fire warden is responsible for assisting building occupants to evacuate, reporting all personnel in their designated area have been evacuated, and ensuring accountability of all building occupants from their designated area.  
51. Question:  The following documentation (including forms) is referenced in the DRFP, but not included in the JASS Technical Library:

· JPR 1700.1 JSC Safety & Health Handbook  
· NPR 8621.1B NASA Procedural Requirements for Mishap and Close Call Reporting 

· NPD 1440.6 Records Management 

· JSC 17773 Instructions for Preparation of Hazards Analysis for JSC Operations 

· NPR 8715.3 NASA Safety Manual Appendices 

· JSC Form 1240 JSC Notice of Safety or Health and Action Plan 

· OSHA CSP 03-01-000 Voluntary Protection Program - a website reference will do.
Answer:  Some of the documents listed above have been posted to the technical library recently. NASA continues to review documents for release to the public, and will post those that are approved for public information. Documents that are not releasable to the public will be made available to the contractor when the contract begins.
52. Question:  Section 5 Proposal Content [sic, 5.15 MISSION SUITABILITY PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS], B. Technical Understanding Subfactor, 5. Training…
a) Question:  Is the Training Plan referenced in the instructions included in the page limitation?

Answer:  Yes, it is included in the page limitation.

b) Question:  If so, should it be formatted as a stand alone document like the S&H and OCI Plans?


Answer:  According to the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.15B(5), the Offeror shall submit its training plan (strategy) within Volume I.  This plan shall be made a part of the contract upon award as Section 4, Attachment 4.13.  

53. Question:  Section 4, SOW 3.0.4 Meeting Services, Telecommunication Services, and Scheduling Conference Rooms; who are the JSC ViTS contractors at JSC and MSFC? 

Answer:  The appropriate contact information for telecommunication services and video conferences will be provided when the contract begins. 

54. Question:  Will NASA consider award fees or bonuses for certain levels of performance?

Answer:  No, this is not an award fee solicitation.  Bonuses are an internal decision made by the company for its employees as part of its overall compensation plan.

55. Question:  Is the prime required to have relevant past performance in size and scope or can the subcontractor have 100% of the relevant past performance.

Answer:  In the case of an Offeror without a record of relevant past performance or for whom information on past performance is not available, the Offeror may not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance [Draft RFP, Section 6, 6.4].  See also the answers to questions #29 and #43(a).

56. Question:  What is the anticipated number of contract employees required for full-time, part-time and temporary positions above the anticipated 149 (Notice No. NASA 60688) Secretary and Administrative assistants?

Answer:  The data provided on the Standard Form e98 and e98a “Notice of Intention to Make A Service Contract and Response to Notice” is the Government’s best guess as to the total number of positions that the may be requested in each classification at any given time during the contract period.


57. Question:  What is the number of contract employees under the current contract?

Answer: See answer to question 1.


58. Question:  Will the actual pricing spreadsheets have formulas or will we have to create them ourselves?

Answer:  Some templates include NASA formulas that are not to be changed; some templates require the Offeror to enter formulas.  Please see instructions in Section 5, 5.17.


59. Question:  Will the final RFP provide a description of each column?

Answer:  Complete instructions for each template are located in the Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.17.


60. Question:  How many unions are there currently associated with the staffing positions identified by this solicitation?

Answer:  See answer to question 35.

61. Question:  Does this contract fall under the Service Contract Act (SCA)?

Answer:  Yes; please refer to Section 3, 3.1(c) and Section 5, 5.15A (3) of the Draft RFP.


62. Question: Draft RFP Attachment 5.1, Page Limitations, Page 5.1-1 Attachment 5.1 states that the resume shall not exceed two pages.  The amount of information and detail requested in the resume format will make it extremely difficult to adequately respond in this page limitation.  

We would like to request that the resume page limitation be increased to 4 pages. 

Answer: After review and consideration of your request, the Government has determined that the resume page limitation will remain 2 pages per resume.


63. Question: Draft RFP Section 5.14, Item A.2. Page Limitations and Formatting, Page 5-6 Section does not state that resumes are excluded from the overall proposal 60 page limitation.  If they are included it could significantly reduce the usable response pages depending on the number of Key Persons submitted.

We would like to request that resumes be exempted from the overall proposal page count.

Answer: After review and consideration of your request, the Government has determined that resumes will be excluded from the overall page limitations.  The final RFP determines the final requirements of the solicitation.

64. Question: Draft RFP Section 5.14, Item A.2. Page Limitations and Formatting, Section 2.a.(2), Page 5-6 Section states that Response to DRD 6, Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan and NonDisclosure Agreements is not page counted.  The DRD 6 states that “SUBMISSION FREQUENCY:  At contract start up and then as required:”.   There is also not a prescribed place to put the plan in Section 5.14 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions

Please clarify if the Plan is required with proposal submission and where it should go.

Answer: The plan is not required in the proposal.  Refer to the Final RFP when posted.


65. Question:  Draft RFP Section 5.15, Item A.1.a. Management Approach, Page 5-9, Section does not clarify whether the DRD 1, Management Operating Plan is excluded from the overall proposal 60 page limitation.  The significant information requested by DRD 1 will reduce usable overall proposal pages and impact the offer’s ability to adequately respond to volumes I and II. 

We would like to request DRD 1 be exempted from the overall proposal page count.

Answer:  After review and consideration of your request, the Government has determined that DRD 1 will not be exempted from the overall proposal page count.  JSC requests that Offerors provide succinct plans and proposals, sufficiently addressing and encapsulating the company’s strategies that meet the solicitation requirements, while highlighting the company’s capabilities.  The final RFP determines the final requirements of the solicitation.



66. Question:  In the Draft RFP Section 5.14, Item A.2. Page Limitations and Formatting, Section A.2.c. Page 5-6, the 10 point font size limitation for text on charts and graphics will severely limit the offer’s ability to provide meaningful graphics.

We would like to request graphic text font size be limited to clearly readable text or 8 point minimum font size.

Answer:  After review and consideration of your request, the Government has determined that the text within charts and graphs shall continue to be no smaller than a 10 point font size.


67. Question: Draft RFP Section 5.14 Item A.2. Page Limitations and Formatting, Page 5-6 and DRD 2, Safety and Health Plan, does not state if there is any page limitation for the Safety and Health Plan.

We request that page limitations, if any, be identified for the Safety and Health Plan.

Answer:  The Draft RFP, Section 5, 5.14A(2) (1) states that the response to DRD 2, Safety and Health Plan is excluded from the page limitation.
68.  Question:  What about bonding is there a cash bond, performance bond, surety bond?

Answer:  Bonds are not required for this procurement.
69.
Question:  Is this contract exclusive only for 8a firms?
Answer:  This procurement is a competitive 8(a) business set-aside. Offers are solicited only from small business concerns expressly certified by the Small Business Administration (SBA) for participation in the SBA's 8(a) Program.
70.  Question:  Is there an interim security clearance for the administrative support staff that will allow them to work while their security clearance is being processed?

      Answer:  Yes, please refer to FAR 52.204-9, Personal Identity Verification of Contractor Personnel, in Section 2 of the draft solicitation.


71.
Question:  Is there a facility clearance if the contract is awarded to a company and how long will they have to get one?


Answer:  A facility clearance for the company is not necessary.  Refer to the answer for question 70 regarding individual security clearance required to gain access to enter a NASA installation and NASA access-controlled facilities.

72.
Question:  Also, if the company does not have a facility clearance will NASA sponsor the firm?


Answer:  See the answers to questions 70 and 71.

73.
Question:  If the person does not have a clearance can that be waived and then they can start working anyway, or do they need to be cleared before they start working?


Answer:  No, a person must have a security clearance before they start working.  However, they can have an interim clearance.  See the answer to question 70.

74.
Question:  Does the contract begin in March of 09?


Answer:  The anticipated contract start date is March 30, 2009.  Offerors should monitor the NASA Acquisition Internet Service (NAIS) and JASS websites for information on any changes to the posted schedule.

75.
Question:  Also, is payment of invoices net 30 days or sooner?


Answer:  Pursuant to FAR 52.212-4, payments will be handled in accordance with the Prompt Payment Act (31 U.S.C. 3903) and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) prompt payment regulations at 5 CFR Part 1315.

76.
Question:  Do you use the government purchase card?


Answer:  No.  The government purchase card will not be provided to contracted support personnel, nor will the Government purchase card be used.  Service requests will be issued by a task order.  Please see the draft RFP, SOW Section 2.2, "Task Order and JASS Service Request Authorization." 
77.
Question:  Are these task orders?


Answer:  Yes, task orders will be issued. Please see the draft RFP SOW Section 2.2 “Task Order and JASS Service Request Authorization.”
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